

VICTORIA.

Legislative Council.

STANDING
RULES AND ORDERS
OF THE
LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL,
AND
JOINT STANDING ORDERS
FOR
BOTH HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT.



By Authority:

JOHN FERRES: GOVERNMENT PRINTER, MELBOURNE.

1868.

CONTENTS.

	PAGE
GENERAL CONDUCT OF BUSINESS, I to XXII.	1
MOTIONS, XXIII to XXVII.	7
PUBLIC BILLS, XXVIII to XXXI.	8
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE, XXXII to XXXIX.	10
LAPSED QUESTIONS, XL to XLI.	12
SELECT COMMITTEES, XLII to LIV.	<i>ib.</i>
MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR, LV to LVI. ...	16
PETITIONS, LVII to LXXI.	<i>ib.</i>
STRANGERS, LXXII to LXXVII.	19
SUSPENSION OF STANDING RULES AND ORDERS, LXXVIII.	20
JOINT STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR BOTH HOUSES, LXXIX to XCVIII (J.O. 1 to 20) ...	21
PRIVATE BILLS, XCIX to CXVIII.	28
JOINT STANDING RULES AND ORDERS FOR BOTH HOUSES, CXIX to CXXIII.	35
LEAVE OF ABSENCE TO PRESIDENT, CXXIV.	37

ANALYSIS.

GENERAL CONDUCT OF BUSINESS.

- I. How Rules of Imperial Parliament applicable to Council.
- II. If a Quorum not present within a given time, Council adjourned.
- III. If want of a Quorum be noticed, Council adjourned.
- IV. How absence of President remedied.
- V. How Call of House to be made.
- VI. How Order for Call of House to be forwarded.
- VII. How divisions shall be called for and ascertained.
- VIII. Taking of Divisions.
- IX. Division Lists to be recorded.
- X. Addresses, how sent to Governor.
- XI. No reply on Order of Day, or on Amendment.
- XII. Debate, how to be conducted.
- XIII. Personal or disorderly reflections.
- XIV. Member called to order must sit down.
- XV. Member named by President as disorderly to withdraw.
- XVI. Disobedience of Order of Council a contempt.
- XVII. Non-compliance with Order for Call of House a contempt.
- XVIII. Absence of Member from Council.
- XIX. Commitment of Member or other person in contempt.

- XX. President may commit on his own authority in cases of emergency.
- XXI. Scale of Fees payable on arrest or commitment.
- XXII. Fees, how paid and applied.

MOTIONS.

- XXIII. Notice of Motion, how to be given.
- XXIV. None but unopposed Motion to be made without notice.
- XXV. Printing of a Document not a Petition may be moved without notice.
- XXVI. Motions to precede Orders of Day.
- XXVII. Motions to be moved in their order.

PUBLIC BILLS.

- XXVIII. Chairman of Committees to certify every Bill before third reading.
- XXIX. Consideration of amendments made in Bills by the Governor.
- XXX. Bills, as amended by the Governor, and agreed to by Council, to be sent to Legislative Assembly.
- XXXI. Bills altering Constitution Act, how certified.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL.

- XXXII. Chairman of Committees to act during the Session.
- XXXIII. Ten members, exclusive of Chairman, a quorum in Committee.
- XXXIV. Lists of Divisions in Committee to be printed weekly.
- XXXV. Relevant amendments in Bills may be made in Committee.

- XXXVI. Italics, how dealt with.
- XXXVII. Consideration of amendments made by Legislative Assembly in Bills.
- XXXVIII. Questions of Finance to be considered in Committee.
- XXXIX. Report, how brought up.

LAPSED QUESTIONS.

- XL. Resumption of Debate interrupted by a count out.
- XLI. Resumption of Committee interrupted by a count out.

SELECT COMMITTEES.

- XLII. Number of Members requisite.
- XLIII. President not compelled to serve.
- XLIV. Members to be named, or number required by ballot, when Committee asked for.
- XLV. Ballot for Committee, how taken.
- XLVI. Alteration in Committee to be specified in Notice of Motion.
- XLVII. Quorum of Select Committees.
- XLVIII. Questions, how decided in Committee.
- XLIX. If Quorum of Members wanting, Chairman may adjourn.
 - L. Proceedings of Committees, how recorded.
 - LI. Chairman to prepare Report.
 - LII. How Report to be considered, and how amendments to be proposed.
 - LIII. Chairman to sign Report.
 - LIV. Standing Orders Committee, how to be appointed.

MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR.

- LV. On receipt of Message from the Governor, business suspended.
- LVI. Consideration of Message from the Governor.

PETITIONS.

- LVII. The presenting of Petitions.
- LVIII. Contents of Petitions.
- LIX. Member to affix his name.
- LX. Petition must contain prayer at the end.
- LXI. Each skin or sheet to be signed.
- LXII. Petitions to be in English, or accompanied by authenticated translations.
- LXIII. Signatures to Petitions must be genuine.
- LXIV. No documents may be attached to Petitions.
- LXV. No Petition may refer to a Debate in Parliament during current session.
- LXVI. What may be stated by Member presenting a Petition.
- LXVII. No debate allowed on Petition when presented.
- LXVIII. In urgent cases debate may be allowed.
- LXIX. Petitions against Resolutions or Bills imposing tax for the service of the year.
- LXX. Petition for distinct grant of money cannot be received.
- LXXI. Petitions not to be printed except as the basis of a motion.

STRANGERS.

- LXXII. Strangers not admitted within the Bar.
- LXXIII. Members of the Legislative Assembly have seats outside the Bar.

- LXXIV. Accommodation for the Speaker within the Council Chamber.
- LXXV. President's orders and Members' orders for admission of Strangers.
- LXXVI. At the request of any Member, or of his own will, the President may order strangers to withdraw.
- LXXVII. Standing Orders Committee to prescribe arrangements for opening and prorogation of Council.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING RULES AND ORDERS.

- LXXVIII. Notice must be given when Suspension of Standing Orders is desired.

JOINT STANDING ORDERS.

MESSAGES.

- LXXIX. [J.O. 1.] Communications between the Houses must be by Message.
- LXXX. [„ 2.] Messages to be in writing.
- LXXXI. [„ 3.] How Messages taken by Members are announced.
- LXXXII. [„ 4.] How Messages taken by Clerk Assistant are delivered.
- LXXXIII. [„ 5.] How Bills, Votes, or Resolutions are communicated.
- LXXXIV. [„ 6.] How Bills, Votes, or Resolutions are returned from one House to the other.
- LXXXV. [„ 7.] Written reasons to be given for not agreeing to amendment proposed by the other House, or for insisting on amendment already made known.

- LXXXVI. [J.O. 8.] Number of Members of each House in Joint Committees, and vote of Chairman.
- LXXXVII. [„ 9.] Joint Committees, which must be appointed at the commencement of each Session.
- LXXXVIII. [„ 10.] How Joint Committees are to be ordinarily formed.

BILLS.

- LXXXIX. [J.O. 11.] Certificates on Bills passed.
- XC. [„ 12.] Amendments to be attached to Bills sent from one House to the other.
- XCI. [„ 13.] Fair Printing of Bills which have passed both Houses.
- XCII. [„ 14.] Three fair prints of all Bills to be authenticated.
- XCIII. [„ 15.] Three fair prints of all Bills to be presented to the Governor.
- XCIV. [„ 16.] Endorsement on Bills of amendments made by the Governor and agreed to by both Houses.
- XCV. [„ 17.] Custody of Bills assented to.
- XCVI [„ 18.] Titles of Bills.
- XCVII. [„ 19.] Numbering of Acts of Legislature.
- XCVIII. [„ 20.] Performance of duties imposed by Joint Standing Orders on Clerk of Parliaments.
-

STANDING ORDERS OF THE LEGISLATIVE
COUNCIL ON PRIVATE BILLS.

- XCIX. [1.] How Private Bills initiated.
- C. [2.] Copies of proceedings of Select Committee of Legislative Assembly on Private Bills.
- CI. [3.] Number of members of Select Committees on Private Bills balloted for.
- CII. [4.] Attendance of Members on Select Committees compulsory.
- CIII. [5.] Personal interest a ground of exemption from service on Select Committee.
- CIV. [6.] Members may be specially excused from service on Select Committee.
- CV. [7.] Absence of Member a ground for adjourning a Select Committee.
- CVI. [8.] Declaration to be signed by Member before voting on Select Committee.
- CVII. [9.] Three days' notice to be given of meeting of Select Committees.
- CVIII. [10.] Select Committees to sit on each business day from eleven till three.
- CIX. [11.] Hearing of Petitions against Private Bills.
- CX. [12.] How Chairman of Select Committee to report to the House.
- CXI. [13.] Private Bills reported on by Select Committees not to be read a second time until six days after bringing up of Report.
- CXII. [14.] Fee to be paid to Treasury before first reading of Private Bill, and copies of Bill, or amended Bill, to be provided by promoters.

- CXIII. [15.] Private Bills to pass through only one stage in one day.
- CXIV. [16.] Presentation of Private Bills for the Royal Assent, and publication of Private Bills assented to.
- CXV. [17.] Copies of plans, &c., to be furnished before second reading of Private Bills.
- CXVI. [18.] Parliamentary agents and solicitors.
- CXVII. [19.] Petitioners against Private Bills to lodge a sum of money.
- CXVIII. [20.] Application of money lodged by Petitioners against Private Bills.

JOINT STANDING ORDERS.

ERRORS IN BILLS.

- CXIX. [J.O. 21.] Clerical Errors in Bills to be reported.
- CXX. [J.O. 22.] Typographical Errors in Bills, how to be corrected.

QUORUM OF JOINT COMMITTEES.

- CXXI. [J.O. 23.] Three to be a Quorum of Joint Library Committee.
- CXXII. [J.O. 24.] Three to be a Quorum of Joint Refreshment Rooms Committee.

RESERVED ACTS.

- CXXIII. [J.O. 25.] Numbering of Reserved Acts.

STANDING ORDER OF THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

- CXXIV. Leave of Absence to the President.

VICTORIA.

Legislative Council.

STANDING RULES AND ORDERS

AND

JOINT STANDING RULES AND ORDERS.

GENERAL CONDUCT OF BUSINESS.

I. That in all cases not hereinafter provided for, resort shall be had to the Rules, forms, usages, and practice of the Imperial Parliament of Great Britain and Ireland, which shall be followed so far as the same are applicable to the proceedings of this Council.

How Rules of Imperial Parliament applicable to Council.

II. That the President shall take the Chair as soon after the time appointed for the Meeting of the Council as there shall be a quorum of members present; but if at the expiration of half an hour after the time appointed there be not a quorum, the President shall then take the Chair and adjourn the Council to the next sitting day.

If a quorum not present within a given time, Council adjourned.

If want of a quorum be noticed, Council adjourned.

III That if, at any time after the commencement of the business of the day, notice be taken that there be not a quorum of members present, the President shall forthwith count the House, and, if there be not a quorum, shall, without question put, adjourn the Council to the next sitting day.

How absence of President remedied.

IV. Whenever the President shall by letter inform the Clerk of the Council that he is prevented attending in his place, or whenever the Clerk of the Council shall state that the President is unavoidably detained, the Chairman of Committees of the Council, if present, but if he shall be absent, then such other member as the Council may appoint, do perform the duties and exercise the authority of President in relation to all proceedings of this Council as Deputy President until the next meeting of the Council, and so on from day to day on the like information being given to the Council, until the Council shall otherwise order: provided that, if the Council shall adjourn for more than twenty-four hours, the Deputy President shall continue to perform the duties and exercise the authority of President for twenty-four hours only after such adjournment.

Sec 702 - Sec 47

*Legislative Council
(Report) Bill 1881.*

V. That no Order for a Call of the House shall be made for any day earlier than fourteen days from the date of such Order, inclusive of the day of such Order.

How Call of House to be made.

VI. That a Copy of the Order for a Call of the House, signed by the Clerk, shall be forwarded to each member of the Council.

How Order for Call of House to be forwarded.

VII. That whenever a division shall be demanded by two members, the members present shall take their seats, the "Contents" on the right, the "Not Contents" on the left of the Chair respectively, and the President, or the Chairman, when the House is in Committee, shall appoint Tellers, one of either party, and shall declare which has the majority from written lists of the members voting on each side, to be handed to him by the Tellers.

How divisions shall be called for and ascertained.

VIII. On every division a bell shall be rung by the Clerk of the House, and the Usher shall ring bells communicating with the library and refreshment rooms; and as soon as the Usher shall report that the doors are locked, the President or Chairman of Committees, as the case

Taking of divisions.

may be, shall put the question a second time, and the Tellers shall forthwith proceed to count the members.

Division lists
to be re-
corded.

IX. That an entry of the Division Lists be made by the Clerk in the Minutes of the Proceedings.

Addresses,
how sent to
Governor.

X. That all Addresses to the Governor shall be forwarded by the Clerk of the Parliaments through the Chief Secretary, unless otherwise ordered by the Council.

No reply on
Order of Day,
or on amend-
ment.

XI. That a member moving an Order of the Day, or an amendment, shall not be entitled to a reply.

Debate, how
to be con-
ducted.

XII. That no member shall digress from the subject matter of the question under discussion, or comment upon the words used by any other member in a previous debate, or upon any expressions said to have been used in the Legislative Assembly ; and that all imputations of improper motives, and all personal reflections on members shall be considered highly disorderly.

XIII. That whenever any member shall make use of any expression personal and disorderly, or capable of being applied offensively to any other member, the member so offending shall be required to withdraw the expression, and to make a satisfactory apology to the Council.

Personal or disorderly reflections.

XIV. That a member called to order shall sit down, unless permitted to explain.

Member called to order must sit down.

XV. That when, in consequence of highly disorderly conduct, the President shall call upon any member by name, such member shall withdraw as soon as he has been heard in explanation; and after such member's withdrawal the Council shall at once take the case into consideration.

Member named by President as disorderly to withdraw.

XVI. That any member or other person who shall wilfully disobey any lawful order of the Council, and any member or other person who shall wilfully or vexatiously interrupt the orderly conduct of the business of the Council, shall be held guilty of contempt.

Disobedience of order of Council a contempt.

XVII. That any member not attending in compliance with an Order for a Call of the House without reasonable excuse shall be held guilty of contempt.

Non-compliance with order for Call of House a contempt.

Absence of
Member from
Council.

XVIII. That no member shall absent himself during the session for more than one week without informing the President, nor for more than three consecutive weeks without express leave of absence from the Council, and any member wilfully infringing this Order shall be held guilty of contempt.

Commitment
of Member or
other person
in contempt.

XIX. That any member or other person declared guilty of contempt shall be committed to the custody of the Usher by order of the President.

President
may commit
on his own
authority
in cases of
emergency.

XX. That in cases of great emergency requiring an immediate remedy, the President shall commit on his own authority.

Scale of fees
payable on
arrest or
commitment.

XXI. That the following scale of fees shall be payable to the Usher on the arrest or commitment of any person, and no person shall, without the express direction of the Council, be discharged out of custody until such fees be paid, or the session of Parliament concluded:—

For arrest	£50
For commitment	£50
For each day's detention, including sustenance . .	£5 5s.

XXII. That all fees payable under clause Fees, how paid and applied.
 XXI shall be paid to the account of a fund to be called the Legislative Council Standing Orders Fund, in the name of the Council, and shall be applied to such purposes as the Council shall direct in discharge of any expenses connected with the Standing Orders.

MOTIONS.

XXIII. That no Notice of Motion shall be Notice of Motion, how to be given.
 received after the Council shall have proceeded to the Orders of the Day.

XXIV. That no member shall make any None but unopposed motion to be made without notice.
 motion except an unopposed motion, but in pursuance of Notice openly given at a previous sitting of the Council and duly entered on the Notice Paper.

XXV. That it shall be in order, on the pre- Printing of a document not a Petition may be moved without notice.
 sentation of any document, except a Petition, to move, without Notice, that it be printed, and to appoint a day for its consideration.

Motions to precede Orders of Day.

XXVI. That Motions shall take precedence of Orders of the Day, except on days fixed for the consideration of Government business.

Motions to be moved in their order.

XXVII. That, except by leave of the Council, Motions shall be moved in the order in which they stand on the Notice Paper, and if not so moved or postponed, shall be struck out.

PUBLIC BILLS.

Chairman of Committees to certify every Bill before third reading.

XXVIII. That, before any Bill shall be read a third time, the Chairman of Committees shall certify that it is in accordance with the Bill as agreed to by the Committee.

Consideration of amendments made in Bills by the Governor.

XXIX. That whenever the Governor shall transmit by message to the Council any amendment which he shall desire to be made in any Bill presented to him for Her Majesty's assent, the amendment shall be considered by the Council, and, if deemed necessary, referred to the Committee of the whole Council, which shall thereupon consider the same and also recommend such alterations in the Bill as may be necessary for incorporating the amendment therewith, and shall report such alterations to the Council.

XXX. That when the Council shall have agreed to any amendment proposed by the Governor, such amendment, together with the alterations rendered necessary to be made in the Bill presented to the Governor in consequence of such amendment, shall be forwarded to the Legislative Assembly for its concurrence.

Bill as amended by the Governor and agreed to by Council to be sent to Legislative Assembly.

XXXI. That whenever any Bill for repealing, altering, or varying all or any of the provisions of the Act, intituled, "*An Act to enable Her Majesty to assent to a Bill as amended of the Legislature of Victoria, to establish a Constitution in and for the Colony of Victoria,*" and for substituting others in lieu thereof, shall have passed its second and third readings in the Council, with the concurrence of an absolute majority of the whole number of the members of the Legislative Council, the Clerk, or other proper officer of the Council, shall certify the fact on the Bill accordingly.

Bills altering Constitution Act, how certified.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL.

Chairman of Committees to act during the Session.

XXXII. That when any member shall have been appointed Chairman of Committees of the whole Council, he shall continue to act as such Chairman so long as the Session shall continue.

Ten Members, exclusive of Chairman, a quorum in Committee.

XXXIII. That, in Committee of the whole Council, ten members, exclusive of the Chairman, shall be a quorum.

Lists of Divisions in Committee to be printed weekly.

XXXIV. That the Lists of Divisions in Committee of the whole Council shall be printed weekly.

Relevant amendments in Bills may be made in Committee.

XXXV. That Committees of the whole Council, to which Bills may be committed, have power to make such amendments therein as they shall think fit, provided they be relevant to the subject matter of the Bill; but if any such amendments shall not be within the title of the Bill, they do amend the title accordingly, and do report the same specially to the Council.

Italics, how dealt with.

XXXVI. That, in going through a Bill, no questions shall be put for filling up words already printed in italics, and commonly called blanks,

unless exception be taken thereto; and if no alterations have been made in the words so printed in italics, the Bill shall be reported without amendment, unless other amendments have been made thereto.

XXXVII. That, unless otherwise directed, amendments made by the Assembly to public Bills shall not be considered in Committee on the same day on which such amendments may be brought up to the Council.

●

Consideration of amendments made by Legislative Assembly in Bills.

XXXVIII. That all questions of finance, or addresses to the Crown relating thereto, shall first be considered in Committee of the whole House.

Questions of finance to be considered in Committee.

XXXIX. That every Report from a Committee of the whole Council be brought up without any question being put.

Report, how brought up.

LAPSED QUESTIONS.

Resumption
of debate
interrupted
by a count
out.

XL. That if a debate on any Motion, or Order of the Day, be interrupted by the Council being counted out, such debate may be resumed at the point where it was so interrupted, on motion upon notice.

Resumption
of Committee
interrupted
by a count
out.

XLI. That, if the discussion of any question in a Committee of the whole Council be interrupted for want of a quorum, the Council may order the resumption of such Committee on a future day, on motion upon notice, and the discussion of such question shall then be resumed at the point where it was so interrupted.

 SELECT COMMITTEES.

Number of
Members re-
quisite.

XLII. That no Select Committee shall consist of less than five nor more than ten members, without leave from the Council.

President not
compelled to
serve.

XLIII. That it shall not be compulsory on the President to serve on any Select Committee.

Members to
be named, or
number re-
quired by

XLIV. That the Notice of Motion for the appointment of every Select Committee shall

contain the names of the members whom the mover wishes to be appointed with himself on such Committee ; but if the mover be desirous the Committee should be appointed by ballot, then the number only need be stated.

ballot when
Committee
asked for.

XLV. That, if upon any Motion for a Select Committee, any two members shall require it, such Committee shall be formed in the manner following, viz. :—Each member shall give in to the Clerk a list of the members whom he wishes to be appointed on such Committee, not exceeding the number proposed, inclusive of the mover ; and if any list contain a larger number of names it shall be rejected, and the members who shall be reported by the Clerk to have the greatest number of votes shall be declared by the President to be the members of such Committee ; and in any case of doubt arising from two or more members having an equality of votes, the President shall decide which shall serve on such Committee.

Ballot for
Committee,
how taken.

XLVI. That any Notice of Motion for discharging, adding, or substituting members of Select Committees shall contain the names of such members.

Alteration in
Committee to
be specified
in Notice of
Motion.

Quorum of
Select Com-
mittees.

XLVII. That in all Select Committees three shall be a quorum.

Questions,
how decided
in Commit-
tee.

XLVIII. That all questions shall be decided by a majority of voices, including the voice of the Chairman; and whenever the voices are equal, the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

If quorum of
Members
wanting,
Chairman
may adjourn.

XLIX. That if there shall not be a quorum of members present within one quarter of an hour after the time fixed for the meeting of any Select Committee, the Chairman may adjourn the meeting of the Committee to a future day.

Proceedings
of Commit-
tees, how
recorded.

L. That an entry be made on the Proceedings of the names of the members attending each Committee meeting, and of every motion or amendment proposed in the Committee, together with the name of the mover thereof; and if any division take place in the Committee, the Clerk do take down the names of the members voting in any such division, distinguishing on which side of the question they respectively vote, and that lists of the members so voting may be given in with the Report to the Council.

LI. That it be the duty of the Chairman of every Select Committee to prepare the Report.

Chairman to prepare Report.

LII. That the Chairman shall read to the Committee convened for the purpose of considering the Report the whole of his Draft Report, which, if practicable, shall be printed and circulated amongst the members of the Committee; and at some subsequent meeting of the Committee the Chairman shall read the Draft Report, paragraph by paragraph, putting the question to the Committee at the end of each paragraph, that it do stand part of the Report. That a member objecting to any portion of the Report do propose his amendment at the time the paragraph he wishes to amend shall be under consideration.

How Report to be considered, and how amendments to be proposed.

LIII. That every Report of a Select Committee shall be authenticated by the signature of the Chairman.

Chairman to sign Report.

LIV. That a Committee consisting of five members, to be called the Standing Orders Committee, shall be appointed at the commencement of each session, and that the functions of such Committee shall not cease until their successors may be appointed.

Standing Orders Committee, how to be appointed.

MESSAGES FROM THE GOVERNOR.

On receipt of
Message
from the
Governor,
business
suspended.

LV. That whenever a Message from the Governor shall be announced, the business before the Council shall be immediately suspended, and the bearer of the Message introduced into the Council Chamber to deliver the Message to the President.

Consideration of Message from the Governor.

LVI. That the President shall immediately read the Message to the Council, and, if necessary, a day shall be fixed for taking the same into consideration.

 PETITIONS.

The presenting of Petitions.

LVII. That it shall be in order to present any petition during the sitting of the Council, except during a debate, provided there be no interference with business under discussion.

Contents of Petitions.

LVIII. That it shall be incumbent on every member presenting a Petition to acquaint himself with the contents thereof, and to ascertain that it does not contain language disrespectful to any branch of the Legislature, or violate any of the Standing Orders of the Council.

LIX. That every member presenting a Petition to the Council shall affix his name at the beginning thereof.

a Member to affix his name.

LX. That every Petition must contain the prayer of the petitioners at the end thereof.

Petition must contain prayer at the end.

LXI. That every Petition must be signed by at least one person on every skin or sheet thereof.

Each skin or sheet to be signed.

LXII. That every Petition must be in the English language, or be accompanied by a translation, duly authenticated.

Petitions to be in English, or accompanied by authenticated translations.

LXIII. That every Petition must be signed with their names by the parties whose names are appended thereto, and by no one else, except in cases of incapacity by sickness.

Signatures to Petitions must be genuine.

LXIV. That no letters, affidavits, or other documents shall be attached to any Petition.

No documents may be attached to Petitions.

LXV. That no Petition shall make reference to any debate in Parliament during the current session.

No Petition may refer to a debate in Parliament during current Session.

What may be stated by Member presenting Petition.

LXVI. That every member presenting a Petition to the Council, not being a Petition for a Private Bill, or relating to a Private Bill before the Council, do confine himself to a statement of the parties from whom it comes, of the number of signatures attached to it, of the material allegations contained in it, and to the reading of the prayer thereof.

No debate allowed on Petition when presented.

LXVII. That every Petition, not being a Petition relating to a Private Bill, which, according to the rules of this House, can be received, be brought to the Table by the direction of the President, who shall not allow any debate, or any member to speak upon, or in relation to, such Petition.

In urgent cases debate may be allowed.

LXVIII. That, in the case of such Petition complaining of some present personal grievance, for which there may be an urgent necessity for providing an immediate remedy, the matter contained in such Petition may be brought into discussion on the presentation thereof.

Petitions against resolutions or Bills imposing tax for the service of the year.

LXIX. That, subject to the above regulations, Petitions against any resolution or Bill imposing a tax or duty for the current service of the year may be received.

LXX. That no Petition, the prayer of which is for a distinct grant of money shall be received by the Council.

Petition for distinct grant of money cannot be received.

LXXI. That no Petition shall be printed, unless the member moving the printing thereof shall state it to be his intention to make a motion upon the subject to which such Petition shall relate.

Petitions not to be printed except as a basis of a motion.

STRANGERS.

LXXII. That no strangers be admitted to the body of the Council Chamber within the Bar.

Strangers not admitted within the Bar.

LXXIII. That members of the Legislative Assembly be admitted without order to the benches to the right of the President, outside the Bar.

Members of the Legislative Assembly have seats outside the Bar.

LXXIV. That accommodation be provided for the Speaker of the Legislative Assembly within the body of the Council Chamber.

Accommodation for the Speaker within the Council Chamber.

LXXV. That the President only shall have the privilege of admitting strangers to the body of the Council Chamber outside the Bar; but

President's orders and Members' orders for admission of strangers.

every member shall have the privilege of admitting by Orders strangers to the Gallery of the Council Chamber.

At the request of any Member, or of his own will, the President may order strangers to withdraw.

LXXVI. That, on the request of any member, or in his own discretion, the President shall at any time order all strangers to withdraw, and such strangers shall immediately withdraw accordingly.

Standing Orders Committee to prescribe arrangements for opening and prorogation of Council.

LXXVII. That it shall be the duty of the Standing Orders Committee to prescribe the arrangements for the opening and prorogation of Council, which arrangement it shall be the duty of the Usher to carry into effect under the direction of the President.

SUSPENSION OF STANDING RULES AND ORDERS.

Notice must be given when suspension of Standing Orders is desired.

LXXVIII. That (except in cases of urgent and pressing necessity) no motion shall be made to dispense with any Sessional or Standing Order of the Council, without due notice thereof.

JOINT STANDING ORDERS
OF
BOTH HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT.

*(With general number as Standing Orders of the
Legislative Council.)*

1.

MESSAGES.

LXXIX. [J.O. 1.] All communications between the Council and Assembly shall be by Message.

Communications between the Houses must be by Message.

LXXX. [J.O. 2.] Messages from one House to the other shall be in writing, and shall be communicated by the Clerk Assistant of each House respectively, unless the House transmitting the Message shall otherwise direct.

Messages to be in writing.

LXXXI. [J.O. 3.] Members carrying any Message from either House of the Legislature to the other shall be announced at once, unless any member shall be addressing the House, or

How Messages taken by Members are announced.

unless the President or Speaker, as the case may be, shall be ascertaining the sense of the House upon any question, in which case the bearer of the message shall not be announced until the member shall have concluded his speech, or until the sense of the House shall have been declared by the President or Speaker, as the case may be; and the bearer of the Message shall be introduced by the Usher or Serjeant-at-Arms, and shall deliver the Message to the President or Speaker.

How Messages taken by Clerk Assistant are delivered.

LXXXII. [J.O. 4.] Messages carried by the Clerk Assistant of either House shall be delivered to the Usher or Serjeant-at-Arms, as the case may be.

How Bills, Votes, or Resolutions are communicated.

LXXXIII. [J.O. 5.] Bills, Votes, and Resolutions of either House of the Legislature, to which the consent of the other House shall be desired, shall be communicated to such other House by Message, and, in the first instance, without any reason being assigned for the passing such Bill, Vote, or Resolution.

How Bills, Votes, or Resolutions are returned

LXXXIV. [J.O. 6.] Bills, Votes, and Resolutions of either House of the Legislature, to which

the consent of the other House shall have been desired, shall, if returned from such other House, be sent by Message; and, in the first instance, without any reason being assigned for passing, declining to assent to, or amending, as the case may be, such Bills, Votes, or Resolutions.

from one House to the other.

LXXXV. [J.O. 7.] When either House of the Legislature shall not agree to any amendment made by the other House in any Bill, Vote, or other Resolution with which its concurrence shall have been desired, or when either House shall insist upon any amendment previously proposed by such House, and any communication shall be desired, then the communication shall be by Message, and the House transmitting such message shall at the same time transmit written reasons for not agreeing to the amendment proposed by the other House, or for insisting upon any amendment previously proposed by the House sending such Message.

Written reasons to be given for not agreeing to amendment proposed by the other House, or for insisting on amendment already made known.

LXXXVI. [J.O. 8.] The number of Members of each House appointed to serve on any Joint Committee shall be equal, and the Chairman thereof shall have a vote, but not a casting vote.

Number of Members of each House in Joint Committees, and vote of Chairman.

Joint Committees which must be appointed at the commencement of each Session.

LXXXVII. [J.O. 9.] At the commencement of each Session there shall be appointed by each House a Committee of five members respectively to constitute a Joint Committee to manage the Library; another Committee of five Members of each House respectively to constitute a Joint Committee for the management of the Refreshment Rooms; another Committee of five Members of each House respectively to constitute a Joint Committee for the management and superintendence of the Parliament Buildings; and five Members shall form a quorum of each of the said Committees.

How Joint Committees are to be ordinarily formed.

LXXXVIII. [J.O. 10.] Every proposal for a Joint Committee not provided for in these Rules shall be by Message; shall state the object of such Committee, the number of Members to serve thereon, not less than ten nor more than fifteen; and the number of Members to form a quorum thereof; and the House whose concurrence shall be desired shall name the time and place of meeting.

2.

BILLS.

LXXXIX. [J.O. 11.] Every Bill shall be printed fair immediately after it shall have been passed in the House in which it originated; and the Clerk of the House in which the Bill shall have passed shall certify the passing thereof on such fair print, together with the day upon which the Bill did pass.

Certificates
on Bills
passed.

XC. [J.O. 12.] If any amendment shall be made by the House to which the Bill shall be sent, such amendment shall be written on paper and attached to the Bill, and reference shall be made to the section and line of the Bill where the words are to be inserted or omitted, as the case may be, and such amendments shall be certified by the Clerk of the House in which it shall have passed.

Amendments
to be attached
to Bills sent
from one
House to the
other.

XCI. [J.O. 13.] When such Bill shall have passed both Houses of the Legislature, it shall be fair printed by the Government Printer, who shall furnish three fair prints thereof on vellum to the Clerk of the Parliaments.

Fair printing
of Bills which
have passed
both Houses.

Three fair prints of all Bills to be authenticated.

XCII. [J.O. 14.] Such three fair prints of each Bill shall be duly authenticated by the Clerk of the Parliaments.

Three fair prints of all Bills to be presented to the Governor.

XCIII. [J.O. 15.] The three fair prints of all Bills, except the Appropriation Bill, when passed, shall be presented to the Governor for Her Majesty's assent, by the Clerk of the Parliaments.

Endorsement on Bills of amendments made by the Governor, and agreed to by both Houses.

XCIV. [J.O. 16.] In case of amendments to Bills, made upon a Message from the Governor pursuant to the XXXVI clause of the Constitution Statute, after such Bills shall have passed the two Houses of Parliament, the Clerk of the Parliaments shall endorse the same on the original Bill and shall order three fair prints of the Bill on vellum as amended, and shall authenticate the same before they are presented for Her Majesty's assent.

Custody of Bills assented to.

XCV. [J.O. 17.] When the Governor shall have assented in the name of Her Majesty to any Bill, one of the fair prints thereof, on vellum, shall be deposited by the Clerk of the Parliaments with the Registrar of the Supreme Court, another

shall be delivered to the Private Secretary of His Excellency the Governor, for transmission to Her Majesty's Principal Secretary of State for the Colonies, and the third shall be retained in the record office of the Parliament Houses.

XCVI. [J.O. 18.] The Title of every Bill shall succinctly set forth the general object thereof.

Titles of
Bills.

XCVII. [J.O. 19.] Every Act of the Legislature, commencing No. 1, from the 1st January, 1857, shall be numbered in regular arithmetical series, in the order in which the same shall be assented to by the Governor.

Numbering
of Acts of
Legislature.

XCVIII. [J.O. 20.] In case of unavoidable absence or illness of the Clerk of the Parliaments, the duties imposed upon him by these Rules shall be performed by the Clerk Assistant of the Legislative Council.

Performance
of duties
imposed by
Joint Stand-
ing Orders on
Clerk of
Parliaments.

STANDING ORDERS
OF
THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL ON
PRIVATE BILLS.

How Private
Bills initi-
ated.

XCIX. [1.] That, until Special Standing Orders for the initiation of private Bills shall have been adopted, this Council will not enter on the consideration of any private Bill which has not first been considered by the Legislative Assembly, and referred by that body for the concurrence of this Council.

Copies of
Proceedings
of Select
Committee of
Legislative
Assembly on
Private Bills.

C. [2.] That every private Bill sent up from the Legislative Assembly, if accompanied by a printed copy of the report and proceedings of the Select Committee of that House to which it shall have been referred, shall be dealt with in the same manner as a public Bill, and shall not be referred to a Select Committee of this Council, unless the same shall be opposed, and then only by motion on notice to be made before the second reading.

CI. [3.] That every Select Committee on private Bills shall consist of five members, to be chosen by ballot, who shall choose their own Chairman, and of whom three shall form a quorum.

Number of Members of Select Committees on Private Bills balloted for.

CII. [4.] That every one of such Committee of five do attend the proceedings of the Committee during the whole continuance thereof.

Attendance of Members on Select Committees compulsory.

CIII. [5.] That members be exempted from serving on the Committee on any private Bill where they shall have any interest.

Personal interest a ground of exemption from service on Select Committee.

CIV. [6.] That members be excused from serving for any special reason, to be approved of in each case by the House.

Members may be specially excused from service on Select Committee.

CV. [7.] That if any member of such Committee is prevented from continuing his attendance, the Committee shall adjourn, and report the cause of such member absenting himself to the House, if then sitting, or at its next meeting, and shall not resume its sittings without leave of the House.

Absence of Member a ground for adjourning a Select Committee.

CVI. [8.] That each member of a Select Committee on a private Bill, before he shall be

Declaration to be signed by Member

before voting on Select Committee. entitled to attend and vote thereon, shall sign a declaration that he has no personal interest in the Bill, and that he will never vote on any question which may arise in the Committee without having duly heard and attended to the evidence relating thereto.

Three days' notice to be given of meeting of Select Committees.

CVII. [9.] That three clear days' notice be given of the meeting of such Committee.

Select Committees to sit on each business day from eleven till three.

CVIII. [10.] That such Committee shall meet on each consecutive sitting day from eleven to three o'clock.

Hearing of petitions against Private Bills.

CIX. [11.] That upon petition, praying to be heard on the merits against any Bill, leave be given to the Select Committee to hear the petitioners in person, by counsel or agents, and to receive such evidence as may be tendered, and the promoter shall be similarly entitled to reply thereto, if he shall think proper, and to adduce rebutting evidence, provided always that such petition be presented to the House before the third day on which the House shall sit after the day such Bill has been brought by message from the Legislative Assembly; provided also

that it set forth specifically the objections of the petitioners to the said Bill, and be otherwise in strict conformity with the rules of the House.

CX. [12.] The Chairman of every Select Committee shall make a report to the House on each several Bill referred for their consideration, and shall annex thereunto the minutes of the Committee.

How Chairman of Select Committee to report to the House.

CXI. [13.] That no private Bill which has been referred to a Select Committee shall be read a second time sooner than the sixth sitting day after the report from the Select Committee shall have been brought up.

Private Bills reported on by Select Committees not to be read a second time until six days after bringing up of Report.

CXII. [14.] That before any private Bill be read a first time in this Council, a sum of twenty pounds shall be paid into the hands of the Colonial Treasurer, for the public uses of the Colony, to meet the expenses of such Bill; and a certificate of that sum having been paid, to be filed with the Clerk, shall be produced by the member having charge of the Bill. And the promoter of the Bill shall also furnish at his own cost fifty fair printed copies of the same, and the

Fee to be paid to Treasury before first reading of Private Bill, and copies of Bill or amended Bill to be provided by promoters.

same number of copies of any amended Bill, for the use of members, three clear days before the same shall be considered.

Private Bills
to pass
through only
one stage in
one day.

CXIII. [15.] That no private Bill shall pass through more than one stage on one and the same day.

Presentation
of Private
Bills for the
Royal Assent
and publica-
tion of Pri-
vate Bills
assented to.

CXIV. [16.] That every private Bill which shall have passed the two Houses of Legislature shall be presented to the Governor for the Royal Assent, and be numbered and published as a public Bill, and the expenses attending such publication shall be ascertained by the Clerk of the Parliaments, and be paid by the promoters of the Bill into the public Treasury, for the public uses of the Colony, before such Bill be presented for the Royal Assent.

Copies of
plans, &c., to
be furnished
before second
reading of
Private Bills.

CXV. [17.] That every promoter of a private Bill shall, at least ten days before the same is set down for the second reading, furnish to the Clerk of the Parliaments attested copies of all plans, sections, books of reference, estimates, and subscription contracts, or declarations in lieu of subscription contracts, laid before the Legislative Assembly, in pursuance of the Standing Orders

of that House, and the Clerk of the Parliaments shall give a receipt for the same, in which the several documents shall be distinctly specified, which receipt the member having charge of the Bill shall produce to the House before the Bill is set down for the second reading.

CXVI. [18.] That every parliamentary agent and solicitor be considered personally responsible to the Council and to the President for any wilful violation of the rules, orders, and practice of Parliament; and for any such violation, and for any other wilful misconduct in prosecuting any proceeding before Parliament, shall be liable to an absolute or temporary prohibition to practise as a parliamentary agent before this House at the pleasure of the President; provided that, upon the application of such agent, the President shall state in writing the grounds of such prohibition.

Parliamentary agents and solicitors.

CXVII. [19.] That, before the prayer of any Petition to be heard on the merits against any Private Bill be granted, the petitioner shall deposit with the President a sum of fifty pounds, to be disposed of according to the decision of the Committee as hereinafter provided

Petitioners against Private Bills to lodge a sum of money.

Application
of money
lodged by
petitioners
against
Private Bills.

CXVIII. [20.] That it shall be competent for the Committee to order the return of the said deposit or of any part thereof to the petitioner, or to order that the same be paid into the Treasury for the public uses of the Colony, or to direct that it be paid over to the promoters of the Bill, provided that the opposition should, in the judgment of the Committee, appear to have been frivolous.

JOINT STANDING ORDERS
OF
BOTH HOUSES OF PARLIAMENT.

*(With general number as Standing Orders of the
Legislative Council.)*

ERRORS IN BILLS.

CXIX. [J.O. 21.] That, upon the discovery of any clerical errors in any Bills which shall have passed both Houses of Parliament and before the same be presented to the Governor for the Royal Assent, the Clerk of the Parliaments shall report the same to the House in which the Bill originated, which House may deal with the same as with other amendments.

Clerical errors in Bills to be reported.

CXX. [J.O. 22.] The Clerk of the Parliaments shall be empowered to correct literal typographical errors in Bills that have passed the two Houses of Parliament.

Typographical errors in Bills, how to be corrected.

QUORUM OF LIBRARY COMMITTEE.

CXXI. [J.O. 23.] That so much of the Joint Standing Order, No. 9, as requires that five members shall be present to form a quorum of

Three to be a quorum of Joint Library Committee.

the Library Committee be repealed, and that three members thereof do henceforth form a quorum.

QUORUM OF JOINT REFRESHMENT ROOMS COMMITTEE.

Three to be a
quorum of
Joint Re-
freshment
Rooms Com-
mittee.

CXXII. [J.O. 24.] That so much of the Joint Standing Order, No. 9, as requires that five members shall be present to form a quorum of the Refreshment Rooms Committee be repealed, and that three members thereof do henceforth form a quorum.

NUMBERING OF RESERVED ACTS.

Numbering
of Reserved
Acts.

CXXIII. [J.O. 25.] That any Act which shall as a Bill have been passed by both Houses of Parliament, but reserved by the Governor for the signification of Her Majesty's pleasure, and shall afterwards receive the Royal Assent, shall be numbered with the number next in arithmetical progression to the number already given to the last Act assented to by the Governor.

STANDING ORDER

OF

THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

*(Approved by the Governor
28 January 1861)*

LEAVE OF ABSENCE TO THE PRESIDENT.

CXXIV. In case of the absence of the President with permission of the Council, the Council shall be presided over by such other member as the Council may appoint, until the President shall have returned, or his leave of absence shall have expired, or his seat shall have become vacant.

Leave of absence to the President.

The Library, Parliament of Victoria

INDEX.

[The letters J.O. signify Joint Order of both Houses.]

- Absence.* Leave of, to President, CXXIV. Leave of XVIII.
- Act, Constitution.* How amendments in, to be certified, XXXI.
- Acts.* How to be numbered, XCVII [J.O. 19].
- Addresses.* To Governor, how forwarded, x. To the Crown, relating to Finance, to be first considered in Committee, XXXVIII.
- Adjournment of House.* By President, II, III.
- Adjournment of Select Committees,* XLIX.
- Agency, Parliamentary.* In Private Bills, CXVI.
- Allusions.* In debate, XII, XIII.
- Amendment.* Member moving has no reply, XI. To a Bill, proposed by Governor and agreed to by Council, to be forwarded to Assembly for concurrence, XXX.
- Amendments* In Bills, from Governor, XXIX, XCIV [J.O. 16]. Made by Assembly not to be considered on same day when brought up to Council, XXXVII. In Bills made by the House to which Bill sent, XC [J.O. 12]. To be written, XC [J.O. 12]. Attached to Bill XC [J.O. 12]. Certified by Clerk of House, XC [J.O. 12].
- Appropriation Bill.* Not presented by Clerk of Parliaments for Royal Assent, XCIII [J.O. 15].
- Arrest.* Of Member or other person, XXI.

- Ballot.* For Select Committees, how asked for and taken, XLIV, XLV. For Select Committees on Private Bills, CI.
- Bar of Council Chamber.* No stranger to come within, LXXII. Accommodation for Speaker within, LXXIV. Members of Legislative Assembly have seats outside of, LXXIII.
- Bills, Private.* How entertained, XCIX. Sent from Legislative Assembly, dealt with as public Bills if accompanied by printed report of Select Committee of Assembly, C. When so sent, not referred to Select Committee unless opposed, C. Notice of motion for reference to Select Committee requisite, C. Select Committees on, CI. Referred to Select Committee not to be read a second time sooner than the sixth sitting day after report brought up, CXI. Not to be read a first time until twenty pounds paid to Colonial Treasurer, CXII. Fifty copies of Bill or of amended Bill to be furnished by promoters of, CXII. Not to pass through more than one stage in one day, CXIII. To be treated as public Bills when passed by both Houses, and numbered and published accordingly, CXIV. Expense of publication to be paid by promoters into public Treasury before presentation of Bill for Royal Assent, CXIV. Promoters of, to furnish attested copies of documents laid before the Legislative Assembly, CXV. Petitioners against, to deposit with President fifty pounds before granting of prayer to be heard, CXVII. Select Committee on, may determine what shall be done with such deposit, CXVIII.
- Bills, Public.* Not to be read a third time till certified by Chairman of Select Committees, XXVIII. Amendments in, sent by Governor, how considered, XXIX. When agreed to, forwarded to Legislative Assembly, XXX. Altering Constitution, to be certified as passing by absolute majority, XXXI. May be amended in Committee as to title or otherwise, XXXV. Italics, commonly called blanks, how dealt with, XXXVI. Amend-

ments made by Assembly in, xxxvii. Messages with, to Assembly, lxxxiii [J.O. 5], lxxxiv [J.O. 6], lxxxv [J.O. 7]. To be certified when passed, lxxxix [J.O. 11]. Amendments made by Council or Assembly in Bills from one House to the other, xc [J.O. 12]. How such amendments certified, xc [J.O. 12]. How Bills passed by both Houses to be printed, xci [J.O. 13]. How fair print authenticated, xcii [J.O. 14]. How presented for Royal Assent, xciii [J.O. 15]. As amended by Governor, and agreed to by both Houses, to be endorsed, xciv [J.O. 16]. Bills assented to, how kept, xcv [J.O. 17]. Title of, how to be worded, xcvi [J.O. 18].

Call of House. How made, v. How transmitted, vi. Disobedience of, xvii.

Casting Vote. In Select Committees when voices are equal, xlviii. Not conceded in Joint Committees, lxxxvi.

Certificates. On Bills, as agreed to in Committee, xxviii. On Bills amending Constitution, xxxi. On Bills passed in either House, lxxix. On Amendments in Bills sent from one House to the other, xc [J.O. 12]. On Bills passed both Houses, xcii [J.O. 14]. On Bills amended by the Governor and agreed to by both Houses, xciv [J.O. 16]. Of payment on Private Bills to Colonial Treasury, cxii.

Chair. To be taken when quorum present, ii. How filled during absence of President, iv.

Chairman of Committees. If present, to take the chair when President unavoidably absent, iv. To appoint Tellers in Divisions in Committee, vii. To put question again when doors are locked, viii. To certify Bills as agreed to in Committee, xxviii. Appointment of, xxxii.

Chairman of Select Committees. Has a vote and a casting vote, xlviii. May adjourn for want of a quorum, xlix. To prepare report, li. To put report, paragraph by paragraph, lii. To sign report, liii.

- Chairman of Select Committees on Private Bills.* Chosen by Committee, ci. To report on each several Bill and annex Minutes of the Committee, cx.
- Clerical Errors.* In Bills, to be reported by Clerk of Parliaments, cxix [J.O. xxi].
- Clerk Assistant.* To carry Messages to Legislative Assembly, lxxx [J.O. 2]. To deliver them to Serjeant-at-Arms, lxxxii [J.O. 4]. To perform duties imposed by Standing Orders on Clerk of Parliaments during illness or absence of latter, xcvi [J.O. 20].
- Clerk of Council.* May inform House of absence of President, iv. To forward copy of Order for Call of House to every member, vi. To ring bell when division called for, viii. To enter Division lists in Minutes, ix. To certify Bills altering Constitution, xxxi. To certify passing of Bills, lxxxix [J.O. 11]. To certify Amendments attached to Bills xc [J.O. 12].
- Clerk of Parliaments.* To authenticate three fair prints of Bills, xcii [J.O. 14]. To present Bills for Royal Assent, xciii [J.O. 15]. To endorse Amendments made by the Governor, and agreed to by both Houses on the original Bill, xciv [J.O. 16]. How to dispose of Acts assented to, xcvi [J.O. 17]. How duties of, performed during absence of, xcvi [J.O. 20]. To ascertain expense of printing Private Bills, cxiv. To give receipt for plans, cxv. To report clerical errors in Bills, cxix, [J.O. 21]. Empowered to correct literal typographical errors in Bills, cxx [J.O. 22].
- Commitment.* Of Member or other person, xix, xx, xxi.
- Committees of the whole House.* Chairman of, how appointed, xxxii. Quorum of, xxxiii. Lists of divisions in, to be printed weekly, xxxiv. On Bills may make relevant amendments, xxxv. May amend Title, reporting the same, xxxv. How italics, commonly called blanks, dealt with in, xxxvi. How Amendments on Bills sent from

Legislative Assembly may be considered in, xxxvii. Questions of Finance considered in, xxxviii. Reports of, to be brought up without question put, xxxix.

Committees, Joint. How appointed, lxxxvi, lxxxvii, lxxxviii [J.O. 8, 9, 10].

Committees, Select. Not to be less than five, nor more than ten, xlii. President need not serve upon, xliii. Notice of motion to appoint, must name Members, xliv. Number of Members only need be stated if ballot asked for, xliv. How ballot to be taken, xlv. Notice to make changes in, xlvi. Quorum of, xlvii. Majority to decide in, xlviii. Chairman of, has vote and casting vote, xlviii. If quorum not present, Chairman may adjourn meeting, xlix. Entry to be made of Members attending meetings, and of proceedings, and of divisions, l. Chairman of, to prepare Report, li. Report may be printed and circulated amongst Members of, lii. Question to be put on each paragraph of Report, lii. Amendments in Report, how to be proposed, lii. Chairman to authenticate Report, liii. On Standing Orders, how to be appointed, liv. To manage Library (joint), how to be appointed lxxxvii [J.O. 9]. To manage Refreshment Rooms (joint), how to be appointed, lxxxvii [J.O. 9]. To manage Parliament Buildings (joint), how to be appointed, lxxxvii [J.O. 9].

Committees, Select, on Private Bills, c. How chosen, ci. Three a quorum of, ci. All Members of, must attend, cii. Members personally interested, exempt from serving on, ciii. Members excused on special reason approved by the Council, civ. Not to sit if any Member be prevented from continuing his attendance, cv. Members to sign declaration that they have no personal interest in the Bill, cvi. And that they will not vote without attending to the evidence on any question which may arise, cvi. Three clear days' notice of every meeting, cvii. To sit from

eleven till three, CVIII. How to hear petitioners, and reply of promoters, CIX. How Chairman of, to report, CX. May direct return of fee to petitioners against Private Bills, CXVIII.

Communications between Council and Assembly, LXXIX [J.O. 1]. To be in writing, LXXX [J.O. 2]. How transmitted, LXXX [J.O. 2]. How announced when carried by Members, LXXXI [J.O. 3]. How delivered by Clerk Assistant, LXXXII [J.O. 4].

Constitution. Bills altering, how to be certified, XXXI.

Contempt. Member or other persons, how guilty of, XVI, XVII, XVIII. Person guilty of, to be committed, XIX.

Contents and Not Contents. How ascertained, VII.

Council. Call of, V. How copy of Order for Call of, forwarded to Members, VI. Shall at once consider case of a Member withdrawn after being named by President, XV.

Counting the House, III, XL. In Committee, XLI.

Custody. Member or other person committed to, XIX, XX, XXI.

Debate. Rules of, XII. Not allowed in presenting a petition, LXVII.

Deputy President. How appointed, IV.

Divisions. How to be demanded, VII. How taken, VII. Bell to be rung when called for, VIII. Doors to be locked during, VIII. To be entered in Minutes, IX. In Committee to be printed weekly, XXXIV. In Select Committees to be taken down, L.

Documents. Not a petition, printing of, may be moved without notice, on presentation of, XXV. Must not be attached to petition, LXIV.

Evidence. On private Bills must be heard and attended to before member of Select Committee can vote, CVI.

- Fees.* Payable on arrest or commitment, amount of, XXI. How to be paid and applied, XXII. Before first reading of private Bills, CXII.
- Finance.* Questions of, to be considered in Committee, XXXVIII.
- First Reading.* Private Bill, CXII.
- Government Printer.* To furnish fair prints of Bills, XCI [J.O. 13].
- Governor.* How addresses forwarded to, x. Amendments in Bills sent with Message by, XXIX. Such amendments when agreed to, to be forwarded to Legislative Assembly, XXX. Messages from, LV, LVI. Bills presented to, for Royal Assent, XCIII [J.O. 15], XCIV [J.O. 16], XCV [J.O. 17], XCVII [J.O. 19].
- House.* Call of, v. How Order for Call of, forwarded to members, VI.
- Imperial Parliament.* Rules of, applicable, I.
- Italics.* Called blanks, how dealt with in Committee, XXXVI.
- Joint Committees.* Number of members of each House, LXXXVI. Chairman of, how to vote, LXXXVI [J.O. 8]. For Library, for Refreshment Rooms, for Parliament Buildings, LXXXVII [J.O. 9]. Quorum of, LXXXVII [J.O. 9]. How appointed, LXXXVII, LXXXVIII [J.O. 9, 10].
- Lapsed Question.* XL, XLI.
- Legislative Assembly.* Expressions used in, not to be commented upon, XII. Amendments proposed by the Governor in Bills to be forwarded to, when agreed to, XXX. Amendments in Bills made by, not to be considered on day on which brought up, XXXVII. Members of, have seats outside the bar, LXXIII. Private Bills not considered, unless received from, until Special Standing Orders made, XCIX; but must be accompanied by Report of Select Committee of, c.
- Library.* Joint Committee, LXXXVII [J.O. 9], CXXI [J.O. 23].

Members. May not reply on an Order of Day or on an amendment, xi. Speaking, may not digress from subject, xii. May not comment on words used by another member in a previous debate, xii; nor on expressions said to have been used in Legislative Assembly, xii. May not impute improper motives nor make personal reflections on members, xii. Using disorderly expressions, shall be required to withdraw them and to apologize, xiii. When called to order, must sit down, xiv. When disorderly and named by the President, shall withdraw after being heard, xv. Disobeying order or call of the House, guilty of contempt, xvi, xvii. May not absent themselves without leave, xviii. Absent without leave, guilty of contempt, xviii. Guilty of contempt, shall be committed to custody, xix. Must acquaint themselves with contents of petition they present, lviii. How they may present petitions, lvii, lviii, lix, lxvi, lxvii. Must affix their names at beginning of such petition, lix. May admit strangers by Orders to gallery, lxxv. May demand the exclusion of strangers, lxxvi. How Messages carried by, lxxxix [J.O. 3]. Number of each House on Joint Committees to be equal, lxxxvi [J.O. 8]. Must attend all proceedings of Select Committees on private Bills, cii. Exempt from serving on Select Committees on private Bills in which they have interest, ciii. May be excused specially by the House, civ. Must sign declaration before attending and voting on Select Committee on private Bills, cvi.

Messages. All communications between Houses to be by, lxxix [J.O. 1]. To be in writing, lxxx [J.O. 2]. To be carried by Clerk Assistant, unless otherwise ordered, lxxx [J.O. 2]. Members carrying, how to be announced, lxxxix [J.O. 3]. Carried by Members to be delivered to President or Speaker, lxxxix [J.O. 3]. Carried by Clerk Assistant to be delivered to Usher or Serjeant-at-Arms, lxxxii [J.O. 4]. Bills, Votes, or Resolutions of either House requiring

consent, to be sent by, LXXXIV [J.O. 6]. Either House not agreeing to Amendment made by other House in any Bill, &c., communication to be by, LXXXV [J.O. 7]. Reasons for not agreeing to Amendment of either House to be written and forwarded by, LXXXV [J.O. 7]. Proposal to appoint a Joint Committee must be by, LXXXVIII [J.O. 10].

Messages from Governor. Transmitting Bill with Amendment, XXIX. Business suspended during receipt of, LV. Shall be immediately read by the President, LVI. How taken into consideration, LVI.

Minutes. Division lists to be entered in, IX.

Money. No petition praying for distinct grant of money can be received, LXX.

Motions. Notice of, how to be given, XXIII. Unopposed only to be made without due notice given, XXIV. For printing of documents, except petitions, may be made on presentation, XXV. Shall take precedence of Order of Day, XXVI. Except on Government days, XXVI. Shall be moved in their order, XXVII. Struck out, if not moved in their order, except by leave of the Council, XXVII. Dispensing with Sessional or Standing Orders not to be made without due notice, except in urgent cases, LXXVIII.

Naming Members. By President, XV.

Notice of Motion. Not to be given after Orders of Day proceeded with, XXIII. For Select Committees, must name members, or ask for the number to be balloted for, XLIV. For altering Committees, must name members, XLVI.

Numbering of Acts, XCVII [J.O. 19]. Of Reserved Acts, CXXIII [J.O. 25].

Opening of Parliament. Standing Orders Committee to prescribe arrangements for, LXXVII.

Order. Member called to, must sit down, XIV.

- Order for Call of House.* To allow fourteen days, v. Copy of, to be forwarded to each member, vi. Member not attending, guilty of contempt, xvii.
- Order of Day.* Member moving, has no reply, xi. After proceeding with, notice of motion cannot be given, xxiii. To succeed notices of motion except on Government days, xxvi.
- Parliament Buildings.* Select Committee on Joint, lxxxvii [J.O. 9].
- Parliamentary Agent and Solicitor.* Personally responsible for violation of any rule or practice of Parliament, cxvi. Liable to absolute or temporary prohibition to practise, cxvi.
- Personal Allusions,* xii, xiii.
- Personal Interest.* In private Bills, ciii. Declaration concerning, cvi.
- Petitions.* Printing of, not to be moved without notice, xxv. How to be presented during sitting of Council, lvii. Not to contain disrespectful language, lviii. To have signature of member at commencement, lix. Must contain prayer at end, lx. Must be signed on each sheet by one person at least, lxi. Must be in English, or be accompanied by an authenticated translation, lxii. Must be genuinely signed, lxiii. Must not be accompanied by any other documents, lxiv. Must not refer to debate in Parliament during current session, lxv. Must not be discussed or debated on presentation, lxvi, lxvii. Except in certain urgent cases, lxviii. Under what circumstances petition against tax or duty for service of current year may be received, lxix. Praying for distinct grant of money cannot be received, lxx. Cannot be printed unless to found a motion on, lxxi. Against private Bills, cix.
- Plans.* Copies of, concerning private Bills, cxv.
- President of Council.* To take the Chair when quorum (ten) present, ii. After half an hour, if no quorum present, to adjourn, ii. Shall count

House if want of quorum be noticed, III; and adjourn the House, III. When absent, how his place to be supplied, IV. Shall appoint Tellers in Divisions in House, VII. Shall put question a second time when the doors are locked, VIII. Shall call a disorderly Member by name, XV. To be informed of departure of Members, XVIII. Shall commit Members or other persons guilty of contempt, XIX. Shall himself commit persons in cases requiring immediate remedy, XX. Need not serve on Select Committees, XLIII. May admit strangers outside the Bar, LXXV. May order strangers to withdraw, LXXVI. May prohibit Parliamentary Agent or Solicitor from practising, CXVI. Leave of absence, CXXIV.

Printer, Government. To furnish three fair prints of Bills on vellum to the Clerk of the Parliaments, XCI [J.O. 13].

Printing. Of any document but petition presented by member may be moved without notice, XXV. Of petition not allowed, except to found a motion on, LXXI.

Private Bills. See Bills, Private.

Proceedings. How regulated, I. Divisions in House to be included in Minutes of, IX. Divisions in Committee of the whole, how to be recorded, XXXIV. Divisions in Select Committees, how to be recorded, L.

Promoters of Private Bills. To pay twenty pounds into Treasury before first reading of Bill, CXII. To furnish fifty copies of Bill, and fifty copies of Bill as amended, CXII. To pay expense of publication to Treasury, CXIV. To furnish copies of plans, &c., CXV.

Prorogation. Standing Orders Committee to prescribe arrangements for, LXXVII.

Publication of Acts, CXIV.

Public Bills. See Bills, Public.

Questions. In division, how put, VIII. Of finance, to be considered in Committee, XXXVIII. Lapsed by counting out, may be re-taken into consideration on notice, XL. Lapsed by a count out in Committee, how re-considered, XLI. In Select Committees, how decided, XLVIII.

Quorum. If notice be taken of want of, House to be counted, III. If quorum wanting, House to be adjourned without question put, III. In Committee of the whole, ten, exclusive of Chairman, XXXIII. In Select Committees of Council, three, XLVII. In Joint Library, Joint Refreshment Rooms, Joint Parliament Buildings Committees, five, LXXXVII [J.O. 9]. In Joint Library Committee, three, CXXI [J.O. 23]. In Joint Refreshment Rooms Committee, three, CXXII [J.O. 24].

Refreshment Rooms. Joint Committee, LXXXVII [J.O. 9].

Registrar of Supreme Court. Copy of Acts to be delivered to, XCV [J.O. 17].

Reports. Of Committee of the whole, brought up without question put, XXXIX. Of Select Committees, to be prepared by Chairman, LI. Of Select Committees, may be printed and circulated amongst the Committee, LII. Question to be put on each paragraph of, LII. Amendments in, how to be proposed, LII. Chairman to authenticate, by signature, LIII.

Reserved Acts. How to be numbered, CXXIII [J.O. 25].

Resolutions. Sent from one House to another, LXXXIII, LXXXIV, LXXXV [J.O. 5, 6, 7].

Royal Assent to Bills, XCH [J.O. 15], XCIV [J.O. 16], XCV [J.O. 17], XCVII [J.O. 19].

Second Reading. Of Private Bill which has been referred to Select Committee, CXI. Of Private Bill, CXV.

Secretary of State for the Colonies. Copy of all Acts to be delivered to Private Secretary for transmission to, XCV [J.O. 17].

Select Committees. See Committees, Select.

Speaker. Of Legislative Assembly to be provided with accommodation within the body of the Council Chamber, LXXIV.

Standing Orders. Of Imperial Parliament, how applicable, I.

Standing Orders Committee. How constituted, LIV. To prescribe arrangements for opening and prorogation of Parliament, LXXVII.

Strangers. Not admitted to Council Chamber, LXXII; but admitted below the Bar by President's order, LXXV. Admitted to galleries by Members' orders, LXXV. How excluded after admission, LXXVI.

Suspension of Standing Orders. LXXVIII.

Tellers. To be appointed in divisions, VII. To write lists of Members voting in divisions, VIII.

Third Reading. Of Bills not to take place until certified by Chairman of Committees, XXVIII.

Title. Of Bills may be amended in Committee, XXXV. Of Bills, how to be worded, xcvi [J.O. 18].

Treasury. Fees on private Bills to be paid to, CXII. Expense of publication of private Bills to be paid to, CXIV.

Typographical Errors in Bills. How to be corrected, CXX [J.O. 22].

Unopposed Motion. May be made without notice given, XXIV.

Usher. To ring division bells in Library and Refreshment Rooms, VIII. To report that doors are locked during divisions, VIII. To take custody of any person committed by order of the President, XIX. To receive fees on arrest or commitment of any person, XXI. To discharge no

arrested person without payment of fees, except by express direction of Council, *xxi*. To carry out arrangements at opening and prorogation of Parliament, *LXXVII*. To introduce Members carrying Messages, *LXXXI* [J.O. 3]. Messages to be delivered to, by Clerk Assistant, *LXXXII* [J.O. 4].

Votes. Sent from one House to the other, *LXXXIII*, *LXXXIV*, *LXXXV* [J.O. 5, 6, 7].